
1 

 AGENDA 
Mason Transit Authority Board 

Regular Meeting 
October 20, 2020, 4:00 p.m. 

Mason Transit Authority 
Port of Allyn 

18560 E State Route 3 
Allyn 
OR 

Pursuant to Governor’s Proclamation 20-28.8, the public 
meeting held virtually using the follow ing WebEx credentials 

To join by phone: 1-408-418-9388 
Meeting number (access code): 126 545 3390 (Password) 0790 

Mason County is currently in Phase 3, therefore members of the public 
may also attend in person. 

OPENING PROTOCOL 
CALL TO ORDER 
ROLL CALL AND DETERMINATION OF QUORUM 
ACCEPTANCE OF AGENDA – ACTION 

CONSENT AGENDA – ACTION 
1. Pg. 03: Approval of Minutes: Approval of the minutes of the September 15, 2020

 MTA regular Board meeting. 
2. Pg. 07: Financial Reports: September, 2020
3. Pg. 14: Check Approval: September 12 – October 14, 2020

REGULAR AGENDA 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS: [None] 

NEW BUSINESS: 
1. Pg. 20: First View of 2021 Budget – DISCUSSION – (Danette and LeeAnn)
2. Pg. 26: First View of 2021 Regular Meeting Calendar – DISCUSSION – (Tracy)
3. Pg. 28: Surplus Vehicles - Resolution No. 2020-32 – ACTIONABLE (Marshall)
4. Pg. 31: Citizen Comment – Discussion - (Danette)
5. Pg. 32: Second Amendment to WSDOT Agreement PTD0044 – Resolution No. 2020-33

– ACTIONABLE (Danette)
6. Pg. 39: First Amendment to WSDOT Agreement PTD0081 –Resolution No. 2020-34

– ACTIONABLE (Danette)
7. Pg. 48: Consolidated Grant Application – ACTIONABLE (Danette)
8. Pg. 49: Operations and Maintenance Board Subcommittee Report – INFORMATIONAL  

(Danette) 

INFORMATIONAL 
Reports 

1. Pg. 50: Park and Ride Update
2. Pg. 51: Management Reports
3. Pg. 60: Operational Statistics

GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT 

COMMENTS BY BOARD 

October 20, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg 1



2 

ADJOURNMENT 

UPCOMING MEETINGS: 
PUBLIC HEARING 

Proposed 2021 Budget 
MTA Transit-Community Center 

Conference Room 
601 West Franklin Street 

Shelton 
Thursday, November 5, 2020 

4:00PM  

MTA Board Meeting 

Mason Transit Authority 
Regular Meeting 

November 17, 2020 at 4:00 p.m. 
Transit-Community Center Conference Room 

601 West Franklin Street 
Shelton 

PUBLIC HEARING 

Proposed 2021 Budget 
MTA Transit-Community Center 

Conference Room 
601 West Franklin Street 

Shelton 
Tuesday, December 1, 2020 

4:00PM  

All participants are welcome. The meeting locations are ADA accessible. If you anticipate needing any type 
of accommodation or have questions about the physical access provided, please call 360-426-9434 in 
advance. We will make every effort to meet accommodation requests. 

October 20, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg 2



1 

Mason Transit Authority 
Minutes of the Regular Board Meeting  
September 15, 2020 
Transit-Community Center 
601 West Franklin Street 
Shelton 
Pursuant to Governor’s Proclamation 20-28.8, the 
public meeting was held virtually using WebEx 
with the public being able to attend in listen-only mode 
as well as in person. 

OPENING PROTOCOL 
CALL TO ORDER: 4:00 p.m. 

ROLL CALL AND DETERMINATION OF QUORUM 
Authority Voting Board Members Present: Wes Martin, Chair; Sharon Trask, Vice Chair; 
John Campbell, Kevin Dorcy, Matt Jewett, Randy Neatherlin (joined at 4:05PM), Kevin Shutty 
and Sandy Tarzwell. Quorum met, Wes Martin and Matt Jewett attended in person 
and all other named Board members were present via WebEx virtual conference. 

Authority Voting Board Members Not Present: [Vacant Position through 
remainder of 2020]. 

Authority Non-voting Board Member Not Present: Greg Heidal, Business 
Representative, IAM and AW, District Lodge 160. 

Citizen Advisor to the Board Present in Person: John Piety 

Others Present in Person: Danette Brannin, General Manager, Tracy Becht, Clerk of the 
Board 

Others Present via WebEx virtual conference:  LeeAnn McNulty, Administrative 
Services Manager; Marshall Krier, Maintenance and Facilities Manager; and 
Mike Ringgenberg, Operations Manager. 

Others Present via WebEx virtual conference: 
Robert Johnson, MTA Legal Counsel; Elizabeth Safsten, WSDOT liaison. 

ACCEPTANCE OF AGENDA 

Moved that the agenda for the September 15, 2020 Mason Transit Authority (MTA) regular 
board meeting be approved. Jewett/Trask. Motion carried. 

CONSENT AGENDA 

Moved to approve Consent Agenda items 1 – 3, as follows: 

1. Moved to approve the minutes of the MTA regular Board meeting of August 18, 2020.

October 20, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg 3



2 

2. Moved that the Mason Transit Authority Board approve the financial reports for
August, 2020 as presented.

3. Moved that the Mason Transit Authority Board approve the payments of August 12,
2020 through September 10, 2020 financial obligations on checks #34396 through
#34492, as presented for a total of $867,876.09.

Tarzwell/Dorcy. Motion carried. 

(Board member Neatherlin joined via WebEx at 4:05 PM) 

REGULAR AGENDA 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS [None] 

NEW BUSINESS 

1. Star Pass Agreement (PTD0212) – Danette Brannin, General Manager, conveyed to the
Board that this is an annual agreement relating to the State Agency Rider (STAR) pass
program between WSDOT and MTA for Washington State employees assigned to a worksite
in Thurston County. Moved that the Mason Transit Authority Board approve Resolution No.
2020-23 and the attached Agreement between WSDOT and MTA for the operation of the
STAR Pass program (Agreement PTD0212). Tarzwell/Campbell. Motion carried.

2. First Amendment to CARES Agreement (PTD0192) – Ms. Brannin shared with the
Board that these additional funds represent the second half of what MTA was originally
awarded. Board member Tarzwell asked if there were limitations to the use of the funds, to
which Ms. Brannin responded that there are no restrictions, so long as the costs are related
to COVID-19 related impacts and operating expenses to MTA, including salaries. Moved that
the Mason Transit Authority Board approve Resolution No. 2020-24 that approves the First
Amendment to Agreement PTD0192 between WSDOT and MTA and authorizes the General
Manager to sign that First Amendment.  Tarzwell/Dorcy. Motion carried.

3. Second Amendment to Contract for Goods and/or Services between the Squaxin
Island Tribe and MTA – Marshall Krier, Maintenance and Facilities Manager, explained to
the Board that this Second Amendment to Contract provides for a 5-year term and federal
requirements so that MTA may continue to provide maintenance of the Squaxin Island
Tribe’s vehicles. He went on further to say that in updating the Labor Rate, the rate was
arrived at following, among other things, review of the Mechanics’ collective bargaining unit
agreement approved in 2019. A question was posed as to whether the rates being charged
are at market rate. Mr. Krier responded that while it covers MTA’s costs, it was estimated
that it may be 20% below market rate.  Board member Tarzwell made a point of clarification
that the term of the contract is actually three (3) years, rather than five (5) years, to which
Mr. Krier corrected his earlier statement. Moved that the Mason Transit Authority Board
approve Resolution No. 2020-25 approving the Second Amendment to the Contract for
Goods and/or Services between Mason Transit Authority and the Squaxin Island Tribe, dated

October 20, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg 4



3 

October 1, 2015 and authorizing the General Manager to sign it. Tarzwell/Dorcy. Motion 
carried. 

4. Update of Title VI Policy (POL-203) – Ms. Brannin indicated that MTA is required to
review its Title VI policy every three years. She provided the highlights of the changes
relating to how complaints are tracked; the Limited English Proficiency (LEP) Plan and
inclusive public participation. Ms. Brannin also shared that Legal Counsel, the Policy
Committee and MTA’s WSDOT liaison had all reviewed the updated policy. Moved that the
Mason Transit Authority Board approve and adopt Resolution No. 2020-26 that approves the
revised Title VI Policy No. 203. Dorcy/Tarzwell. Motion carried.

5. Update of Education Assistance Program Policy (POL-303) – LeeAnn McNulty,
Administrative Services Manager, described that the updates related to clarifying competing
language and that approvals would come from the General Manager. Moved that the Mason
Transit Authority Board approve and adopt Resolution No. 2020-27 that approves the revised
Education Assistance Program Policy (POL-303).  Trask/Dorcy. Motion carried.

6. Update of Meals with Meetings Policy (POL 404) – Ms. McNulty shared that changes in
the policy provided clarifications as to when MTA would or would not have meals with
meetings. Moved that the Mason Transit Authority Board approve and adopt Resolution
No. 2020-28 that approves the revised Meals with Meetings Policy (POL-404).
Trask/Tarzwell. Motion carried.

7. Update of Cell Phone Policy (POL 703) – Ms. Brannin explained that the major change
to this policy related to protecting the data by remotely wiping the phone in the event of loss
or theft and that MTA would have tracking on the phone for such purposes. Also, phone
allowances were no longer allowed and that employees may use their personal phone to
check emails with certain conditions. Moved that the Mason Transit Authority Board approve
and adopt Resolution No. 2020-29 that approves the revised Cell Phone Policy (POL-703).
Shutty/Trask. Motion carried.

8. Voluntary Resignation and Retirement Incentive Program. Ms. Brannin explained
that this program evolved out of the Finance Committee meeting as COVID-19 impacts
created a reduction in force and the yet unknown impacts of I-976. This program gives MTA
employees the option to receive a financial incentive to voluntarily separate from MTA
employment either through retirement or resignation. Community Transit and King County
Metro also have similar programs. She indicated that one of the qualifications is that the
employee must have five (5) years with MTA and can’t have officially announced their
retirement. Ms. Brannin also described there is a seven (7) day revocation period. Board
member Tarzwell asked whether October 30, 2020 was selected because it was a Friday, to
which Ms. Brannin confirmed with “yes”. Additionally, Ms. Brannin said she is not anticipating
more than four (4) employees to participate in the program. The process would be that the
qualifying employee participating in the program would be paid out after the documents
were signed and the seven (7) day revocation period had passed without the employee
revoking the agreement. Moved that the Mason Transit Authority Board approve and adopt
Resolution No. 2020-30 that approves the Voluntary Resignation and Retirement Incentive
Program. Jewett/Dorcy. Motion carried.

October 20, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg 5



4 

9. Settlement with DoubleMap. Ms. Brannin described to the Board the process that
eventually led to attempting resolution through mediation. She further described the
tentative agreement details reached through mediation. Legal Counsel also described how
the settlement was reached by describing the liquidated damages formula and that the
replacement product equated to $210,000. With the $32,000 value of the reader boards that
were retained by MTA, the settlement of $190,000 basically made MTA whole. Board
member Dorcy said that if Legal Counsel and Ms. Brannin were happy with the outcome, so
was he. Board member Tarzwell stated it was a good outcome and job well done. Moved
that the Mason Transit Authority Board approve the General Manager to sign the settlement
agreement with DoubleMap upon review and consent of MTA’s legal counsel.
Campbell/Dorcy. Motion carried.

(Board member Dorcy departed WebEx at 4:40PM) 

INFORMATIONAL – Ms. Brannin provided an overview of the status of the various park and 
ride projects. 

GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT – Ms. Brannin indicated that the sales tax revenue from June 
was the highest ever received. Anything over the budget is being put into reserves. This is a 
good base for continuing current service. 

MANAGEMENT REPORT – [None.] 

COMMENTS BY THE BOARD – Board Tarzwell wanted to take a moment to acknowledge all 
of Kathy Geist’s hard work for MTA and her public service. She will be retiring on October 9. 

A ribbon cutting has been scheduled at the location of the Belfair Park and Ride and Kathy Geist 
is distributing information relating to the event. 

John Piety, Citizen Advisor to the Board, asked that even though the public has not been 
attending the meetings, could we add Public Comment back into the agenda.  

Moved that the meeting be adjourned. 

ADJOURNED 4:50 p.m. 

UPCOMING MEETING 

Mason Transit Authority 
Regular Meeting 

October 20, 2020 at 4:00 p.m. 
On-line via WebEx and in person at 

Port of Allyn 
18560 E State Route 3 

Allyn 

October 20, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg 6



October 20, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg 7



October 20, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg 8



October 20, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg 9



October 20, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg 10



October 20, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg 11



October 20, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg 12



October 20, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg 13



October 20, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg 14



October 20, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg 15



October 20, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg 16



October 20, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg 17



October 20, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg 18



October 20, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg 19



Mason Transit Authority Regular Board Meeting 
Agenda Item:   New Business – Item 1 – Actionable 
Subject:    First View of 2021 Budget 
Prepared by:  LeeAnn McNulty, Administrative Services Manager 
Approved by:  Danette Brannin, General Manager 
Date:    October 20, 2020 
 
Background: 
 
The first draft of the 2021 Budget maintains a conservative approach to revenue 
forecasting.  2020 has taught us that nothing is certain when it comes to revenue 
whether it be sales tax revenue, which we have chosen to keep flat with the 2020 
budgeted amount, or fare revenue that has seen a decrease as a result of substantially 
reduced ridership.  Although sales tax revenue remains at historic levels, it is 
management’s belief these records levels may not be sustainable and could experience 
a drop-off in 2021. 
 
Assumptions for 2021 include: 
Wages and Benefits are forecasted down 14% as compared to 2020 due to layoffs 
resulting from the reduction in service demand.  Contracted Services now includes 
ongoing software license subscriptions to maintain Microsoft compliance and to utilize 
the technology now in place on the fleet. Funding is included for a study to assess 
future park and ride needs in the Hoodsport/Allyn area. Operating reduced service will 
result in lower fuel and vehicle maintenance costs.  In addition, having received 9 new 
cutaways along with the replacement of the Worker Driver fleet will result in fewer 
major repairs. Facility Rent and Park and Ride costs have increased with the temporary 
office location in Belfair for our drivers.  Supplies is budgeted with a significant increase 
to cover safety and cleaning supplies as the pandemic persists.  Other Operating 
Expenses reflects funds set aside for public relations, increased communication to the 
public to promote a safe return to ridership, and miscellaneous maintenance and repairs 
at both JP and the T-CC. 
 
*The draft budget presented in November will include line by line detail for the revenue 
and expense projections for the balance of 2020.  This information can be found on the 
Consolidated 2021 Budget. 
 
 
Summary:  First view of 2021 Budget 
 
 
Fiscal Impact: 
None at this time. 
 
Staff Recommendation: 
None at this time. 

M
ason T

ransit A
uthority B

oard 

October 20, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg 20



October 20, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg 21



October 20, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg 22



October 20, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg 23



October 20, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg 24



October 20, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg 25



Mason Transit Authority Regular Board Meeting 
Agenda Item:   New Business – Item 2 – DISCUSSION 
Subject:    2021 MTA Regular Board Meeting Calendar 
Prepared by:  Tracy Becht, Clerk of the Board 
Approved by:  Danette Brannin, General Manager 
Date:    October 20, 2020 
 
Summary for Discussion Purposes: 
 
The attached 2021 Mason Transit Authority Regular Board Meeting Calendar is provided 
for your review. In years past, two Board meetings have been held in other locations as 
a convenience to members of the public. Understandably, during the COVID-19 
pandemic, members of the public have not been attending the Board meetings held at 
remote locations or in Shelton. Given current conditions relating to the pandemic, it is 
anticipated that this trend will continue during 2021. 
 
The calendar is attached for review and discussion with a calendar in final form to be 
presented to the Board for approval at the November 17, 2020 Authority Board 
meeting. 
 
 
 

M
ason T

ransit A
uthority B

oard 

October 20, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg 26



 
 
 
 

MASON TRANSIT AUTHORITY BOARD 

2020 REGULAR MEETING SCHEDULE 
(Adopted by Resolution No. 2020-XX on ___________, 2020) 

 
 

 

TIME DATE MONTH LOCATION 

4:00 P.M. 19 January MTA Transit-Community Center, 
601 West Franklin Street, Shelton, WA 98584 

4:00 P.M. 16 February MTA Transit-Community Center 
601 West Franklin Street, Shelton, WA 98584 

4:00 P.M. 16 March MTA Transit-Community Center 
601 West Franklin Street, Shelton, WA 98584 

4:00 P.M. 20 April 
 

4:00 P.M. 18 May MTA Transit-Community Center 
601 West Franklin Street, Shelton, WA 98584 

4:00 P.M. 15 June MTA Transit-Community Center 
601 West Franklin Street, Shelton, WA 98584 

4:00 P.M. 20 July MTA Transit-Community Center 
601 West Franklin Street, Shelton, WA 98584 

4:00 P.M. 17 August MTA Transit-Community Center 
601 West Franklin Street, Shelton, WA 

 
4:00 P.M. 21 September MTA Transit-Community Center 

601 West Franklin Street, Shelton, WA 98584 

4:00 P.M. 19 October 
 

4:00 P.M. 16 November MTA Transit-Community Center 
601 West Franklin Street, Shelton, WA 98584 

4:00 P.M. 21 December MTA Transit-Community Center 
601 West Franklin Street, Shelton, WA 98584 

 
 

MTA Administrative Office: 790 East Johns Prairie Road, Shelton, WA 98584 
Phone: 360-426-9434 or 800-374-3747 
Clerk of the Authority E-mail: clerk@masontransit.org 

October 20, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg 27

mailto:clerk@masontransit.org


Mason Transit Authority Regular Board Meeting 
Agenda Item: New Business – Item 3 – Actionable 
Subject:  Surplus Vehicles 
Prepared by:  Marshall Krier, Facilities and Maintenance Manager 
Approved by:  Danette Brannin, General Manager 
Date:    October 20, 2020 
 
 
Background: 
 
Mason Transit has six (6) coaches that have exceeded their useful life and are ready for 
surplus: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The approximate value of each bus is $2,500. Once declared surplus, the buses will be 
offered for sale to other transit agencies and any remaining will be auctioned. Buses 
805, 806, 850 and 851 were replaced by recently acquired coaches numbered 860, 861, 
870 and 871. Coaches 807 and 808 were placed in a contingent fleet and it was 
determined they were no longer needed for regularly scheduled service. 
 
 
Summary: Surplus six (6) coaches. 
 
 
 
Fiscal Impact: 
 
TBD. 
 
Staff Recommendation: 
 
Approve 
 
Motion for Consideration: 
 
Move that the Mason Transit Authority Board adopt Resolution No. 2020-32 declaring 
and approving the surplus and disposal of the vehicles as set forth therein.  

Vehicle 
Number 

Year, Model & 
Description 

  Current 
     Miles 

   
805 1999 Gillig Coach 293,990 
806 1999 Gillig Coach 238,801 
807 2002 35’ Gillig Coach 482,028 
808 2003 30’ Gillig Coach 427,630 
850 2001 Gillig Coach 701,164 
851 2001 Gillig Coach 658,577 

   

M
ason T

ransit A
uthority B

oard 

October 20, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg 28



Resolution No. 2020-32 Page 1 of 2 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2020-32 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE MASON TRANSIT AUTHORITY BOARD 
AUTHORIZING THE DISPOSAL OF SURPLUS VEHICLES. 

 
WHEREAS, the Mason Transit Authority Board, by Resolution No. 2000-04, as 

amended, has adopted established policies to ensure the fair, impartial, responsible and 
practical disposition of surplus property of MTA; and 

 WHEREAS, such policies ensure that the public shall receive the greatest possible value 
for such items;  

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MASON TRANSIT AUTHORITY 
BOARD that the following vehicles be declared as surplus and to be disposed of pursuant to 
MTA’S Surplus Disposal Policy (POL-408): 

 
 
  
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
Adopted this 20th day of October, 2020. 

 
 
 
______________________________  ______________________________ 
Wes Martin, Chair     Sharon Trask, Vice-Chair 
 
 
______________________________  ______________________________ 
John Campbell, Authority Member   Kevin Dorcy, Authority Member 
 
 
_______________________________  ______________________________ 
Matt Jewett, Authority Member    Randy Neatherlin, Authority Member  

Vehicle 
Number 

Year, Model & 
Description 

  Current 
     Miles 

   
805 1999 Gillig Coach 293,990 
806 1999 Gillig Coach 238,801 
807 2002 35’ Gillig Coach 482,028 
808 2003 30’ Gillig Coach 427,630 
850 2001 Gillig Coach 701,164 
851 2001 Gillig Coach 658,577 

   

October 20, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg 29



Resolution No. 2020-32 Page 2 of 2 
 

 
 
______________________________  ____________________________ 
[Vacant], Authority Member   Kevin Shutty, Authority Member 
 
 
______________________________  
Sandy Tarzwell, Authority Member 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO CONTENT:    _______    ______ 
          Danette Brannin, General Manager 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:        ______ 
    Robert W. Johnson, Legal Counsel 
 
 
ATTEST:        DATE:    ______ 
           Tracy Becht, Clerk of the Board 

October 20, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg 30



Mason Transit Authority Regular Board Meeting 
Agenda Item: New Business – Item 4 – ACTIONABLE 
Subject:   Public Comment Using WebEx 
Prepared by:  Danette Brannin, General Manager 
Approved by:  Danette Brannin, General Manager 
Date:    October 20, 2020 
 
 
Background: 
 
A citizen recently phoned in to request that during the COVID-19 pandemic citizens be 
able to make public comments during the meeting. The citizen was informed that 
members of the public may provide any comments to the Clerk of the Board by email, 
US Postal Service or telephone and that a report of any comments would be provided to 
the Board. 
 
The citizen objected to this method of communication and desires that verbal 
comments should be allowed during the meeting. 
 
Legal Counsel has indicated that public comment is required by law in public hearings 
only and not Board meetings. 
 
We informed the citizen that we would bring this topic to the Board for discussion and 
consideration.   
 
 
 
Summary:  Consideration of receiving verbal public comment during MTA 
Board meetings. 
 
 
 
Fiscal Impact: 
 
None. 
 
Staff Recommendation: 
 
None. 
 
Motion for Consideration: 
 
Move that the Mason Transit Authority Board provide a public comment session on 
Board agendas and during the meeting when Governor proclamations mandate 
meetings be held electronically as a safeguard for the public.  

M
ason T

ransit A
uthority B

oard 

October 20, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg 31



Mason Transit Authority Regular Board Meeting 
Agenda Item:   New Business – Item 5 – Actionable 
Subject:    Second Amendment to WSDOT Agreement PTD0044 
Prepared by:  Danette Brannin, General Manager 
Approved by:  Danette Brannin, General Manager 
Date:    October 20, 2020 
 
Background: 
 
MTA received notification of the Sales Tax Equalization Formula award from WSDOT. 
  
The award is to transit systems serving small cities and rural areas. Eligible transit agencies 
receive a prorated amount of the rural mobility funds based on annual sales tax revenues as 
report by the Department of Revenue. 
 
The award is in the amount of $1,755,845 and can be used for operating or capital as 
determined by the transit agency. 
 
Staff will be allocating $1,601,895 to operating. This amount will be added to MTA’s 
Consolidated Grant Agreement PTD0044 for 2021-2023, previously approved by Resolution 
No. 2019-23, as amended by Resolution No. 2020-23, and which authorized the General 
Manager to sign that Agreement and First Amendment.  
 
WSDOT has prepared a Second Amendment to that Agreement PTD0044 (the “Second 
Amendment”) which provides that $668,652 shall be allocated to Project A; $466,755 shall be 
allocated to Project B and $466,488 shall be allocated to Project C. 
  
Staff will be allocating the remaining $153,950 to be used for three capital purposes as 
described in the following business item. 
 
Legal Counsel has reviewed the Agreement. 
 
 
Summary:  Approve the Second Amendment to Agreement PTD0044 for operating 
expenses for the 2019-2021 biennium. 
 
 
Fiscal Impact: 
 
$0.  Sales Tax Equalization funds do not require a match. 
 
Staff Recommendation: 
 
Approve. 
 
Motion for Consideration: 
 
Move that the Mason Transit Authority Board approve Resolution No. 2020-33 that approves the 
Second Amendment to Agreement PTD0044 between WSDOT and MTA and authorizes the 
General Manager to sign that Second Amendment. 

M
ason T

ransit A
uthority B

oard 

October 20, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg 32



 Page 1 of 4 PTD0044-02 

The SECOND AMENDMENT to AGREEMENT PTD0044 entered into between the Washington 
State Department of Transportation (hereinafter referred to as “WSDOT”), and Mason Transit 
Authority (hereinafter referred to as “CONTRACTOR”), and/or individually referred to as the 
“PARTY” and collectively referred to as the “PARTIES,”  
 

RECITALS 
 
WHEREAS, both PARTIES agree to amend AGREEMENT PTD0044 to: 

- Add $668,652 in Rural Mobility Transit Formula Funding for Project A and apply to 
Contractor’s Funds; and 

- Add $466,755 in Rural Mobility Transit Formula Funding for Project B and apply to 
Contractor’s Funds; and 

- Add $466,488 in Rural Mobility Transit Formula Funding for Project C and apply to 
Contractor’s Funds. 

 
NOW THEREFORE, the following AMENDMENTS are hereby incorporated into AGREEMENT 
PTD0044: 
 

AGREEMENT 
 
1. RECITALS are hereby incorporated into this AGREEMENT. 
 
2.  Amend the existing language in ‘SCOPE OF WORK AND BUDGET – Current Agreement 
Costs’ and replace it to read as follows: 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Total Current Agreement 

Cost

2,817,360$                           

6,230,471$                           

3,427,105$                           

Federal Funds

9,657,576$                           

3,413,111$                           State Funds
Total Grant Funds

Contractor's Funds

Current Agreement Costs

SCOPE OF WORK AND BUDGET

October 20, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg 33



 Page 2 of 4 PTD0044-02 

3.  Amend the existing language in ‘SCOPE OF WORK AND BUDGET – Funding by Project’ 
and replace it to read as follows: 
 
 
 

 

Funding by Project

Project A:

UPIN # PTCO042
Service Area:

Scope of Work:

Funds Federal 

Award

Identification 

#

Current 

Percentage

Current Funds Projected 

Funds

Total Current 

and Projected 

Funds

Rural Mobility Transit 
Formula Funds N/A 28%  $       1,463,452  $       1,463,452 

FTA 5311

WA-18-X097; 
WA-2019-091; 

TBD 21%  $       1,067,040  $       1,067,040 
Contractor's Funds N/A 51%  $       2,619,983  $       4,232,816  $       6,852,799 
Projected Grant Funds N/A  $       1,109,722  $       1,109,722 

Total Project Cost 100% 5,150,475$        5,342,538$        10,493,013$     

Budget:

Regional Connections

Sustain regional fixed route service for the general public, people with 
special transportation needs, and express commuters routes in Mason 
County with connections to Kitsap, Thurston and Jefferson counties.

Current Funds reflect total funding appropriated by the Washington State Legislature for 
the Project in the 2019-2021 b iennium. Projected Funds are subject to appropriation by 
the Washington State Legislature, once appropriated, funds will be added to this 
AGREEMENT by written amendment.

Mason, Kitsap, Thurston, and Jefferson Counties

October 20, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg 34



 Page 3 of 4 PTD0044-02 

 
 

 
 

Project B:

UPIN # PTCO043
Service Area:

Scope of Work:

Funds Federal 

Award

Identification 

#

Current 

Percentage

Current Funds Projected 

Funds

Total Current 

and Projected 

Funds

Rural Mobility Transit 
Formula Funds N/A 34%  $       1,015,146  $       1,015,146 
Paratransit Special 
Needs Transit Formula 
Funds N/A 16%  $           468,025  $           468,025 

FTA 5311
WA-2019-091; 

TBD 42%  $       1,244,880  $       1,244,880 
Contractor's Funds N/A 8%  $           229,875  $       2,770,904  $       3,000,779 
Projected Grant Funds N/A  $       1,294,675  $       1,294,675 

Total Project Cost 100% 2,957,926$        4,065,579$        7,023,505$        

Budget: Current Funds reflect total funding appropriated by the Washington State Legislature for 
the Project in the 2019-2021 b iennium. Projected Funds are subject to appropriation by 
the Washington State Legislature, once appropriated, funds will be added to this 
AGREEMENT by written amendment.

Sustain the Core Demand Response (Dial-A-Ride)transit services for the 
elderly, persons with special needs, low-income, and general public in 
Mason County.

Demand Response 

Mason County

Project C:

UPIN # PTCO044
Service Area:

Scope of Work:

Funds Federal 

Award

Identification 

#

Current 

Percentage

Current Funds Projected 

Funds

Total Current 

and Projected 

Funds

Rural Mobility Transit 
Formula Funds N/A 30%  $           466,488  $           466,488 
FTA 5311 WA-2018-077 33%  $           505,440  $           505,440 
Contractor's Funds N/A 37%  $           577,247  $       1,078,397  $       1,655,644 
Projected Grant Funds N/A  $           525,658  $           525,658 

Total Project Cost 70% 1,549,175$        1,604,055$        3,153,230$        

Budget:

Sustain core zone deviated fixed-route service for the general public and 
those with special needs in Mason County.

Mason County

Current Funds reflect total funding appropriated by the Washington State Legislature for 
the Project in the 2019-2021 b iennium. Projected Funds are subject to appropriation by 
the Washington State Legislature, once appropriated, funds will be added to this 
AGREEMENT by written amendment.

Zone (Deviated) Fixed Route 

October 20, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg 35



 Page 4 of 4 PTD0044-02 

4.  A copy of this AMENDMENT to the AGREEMENT shall be attached to and made a part of 
the original AGREEMENT.  Any references to the “AGREEMENT” shall mean “AGREEMENT as 
amended.” 

 
5.  All other terms and conditions of the original AGREEMENT not hereby amended shall 
remain in full force and effect.  This document may be simultaneously executed in several 
counterparts, each of which shall be deemed original having identical legal effect. 
 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the PARTIES hereto have executed this AMENDMENT the day and 
year last written below. 
 
 
WASHINGTON STATE    CONTRACTOR 
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
 
 
 
 
Signed By:            Signed By:                
                            Name         Date           Name  Date 
 WSDOT Public Transportation Division          Authorized Representative  
 
                   Title: ______________________________ 
 
 
                   Print Name: _________________________                                                      
 
 

October 20, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg 36



Resolution No. 2020-33 Page 1 of 2 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2020-33 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE MASON TRANSIT AUTHORITY BOARD AMENDING 
RESOLUTIONS NOS. 2019-23 AND 2020-22 BY APPROVING THE SECOND 
AMENDMENT TO AGREEMENT PTD0044 WITH THE WASHINGTON STATE 

DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION FOR THE OPERATING GRANT 
AGREEMENT AND AUTHORIZING THE GENERAL MANAGER TO SIGN THE 

SECOND AMENDMENT TO AGREEMENT PTD0044. 

 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Resolutions Nos. 2019-23 and 2020-22, Mason Transit 
Authority (MTA) approved Operating Grant Agreement PTD0044 and its First 
Amendment; and 

WHEREAS, WSDOT has prepared a second amendment to the agreement to 
provide for allocation to each of the following projects, the additional amounts 
received by the FY 2021 Sales Tax Equalization funds as follows: 

• Add $668,652 in State Sales Tax Equalization Transit Rural Formula Funds into 
Current Funds for Project A; 

• Add $466,755 in State Sales Tax Equalization Transit Rural Formula Funds into 
Current Funds for Project B; and 

• Add $466,488 in State Sales Tax Equalization Transit Rural Formula Funds into 
Current Funds for Project C. 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MASON TRANSIT 
AUTHORITY BOARD that it approves the Second Amendment to Agreement 
PTD0044 with the Washington State Department of Transportation (the “Agreement”) 
for a total of $9,657,576, an increase of $1,601,895, in which no local match is 
required for the increase; and 

/// 

/// 

(rest of page intentionally left blank) 

October 20, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg 37



Resolution No. 2020-33 Page 2 of 2 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the MTA Board authorizes the General 
Manager is authorized to sign the Agreement between the State of Washington 
Department of Transportation and Mason Transit Authority. 

 
Adopted this 20th day of October, 2020. 

 
 
 
______________________________  ______________________________ 
Wes Martin, Chair     Sharon Trask, Vice-Chair 
 
 
______________________________  ______________________________ 
John Campbell, Authority Member   Kevin Dorcy, Authority Member 
 
 
_______________________________  ______________________________ 
Matt Jewett, Authority Member    Randy Neatherlin, Authority Member  
 
 
______________________________  ____________________________ 
[Vacant], Authority Member   Kevin Shutty, Authority Member 
 
 
______________________________  
Sandy Tarzwell, Authority Member 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO CONTENT:    _______    ______ 
          Danette Brannin, General Manager 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:        ______ 
    Robert W. Johnson, Legal Counsel 
 
 
ATTEST:        DATE:    ______ 
           Tracy Becht, Clerk of the Board 

October 20, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg 38



Mason Transit Authority Regular Board Meeting 
Agenda Item:   New Business – Item 6 – Actionable 
Subject:    First Amendment to WSDOT Agreement PTD0081 
Prepared by:  Danette Brannin, General Manager 
Approved by:  Danette Brannin, General Manager 
Date:    October 20, 2020 
 
 
Background: 
 
MTA received notification of the Sales Tax Equalization Formula award from WSDOT. 
The award is to transit systems serving small cities and rural areas. Eligible transit 
agencies receive a prorated amount of the rural mobility funds based on annual sales 
tax revenues as report by the Department of Revenue. 
 
The award is in the amount of $1,755,845 and can be used for operating or capital as 
determined by the transit agency. 
 
Staff will be allocating $153,950 to be used for capital purchases as follows: 
 

1. Purchase a mini cutaway in the amount of $96,650 for use in providing Dial-A-
Ride service in MTA’s service area.  

2. Purchase a scissor lift in the amount of $17,300. The purchase of this equipment 
is to be used for reaching high areas for the purpose of cleaning, repairing or 
maintaining facilities. 

3. The roof of the Radich Building has been leaking in the past and by replacing the 
roof, it will ensure a longer life for the building. The cost of replacing the roof will 
be $40,000.  

 
WSDOT has presented a First Amendment to Agreement PTD0081 for the three capital 
purchases identified above. 
 
As provided in the preceding business item, staff will be allocating the remaining 
$1,601,895 to operating. 
 
Legal Counsel has reviewed the Agreement. 
 
 
Summary:  Approve certain capital purchases and approve the First 
Amendment to Agreement PTD0081. 
 
 

M
ason T

ransit A
uthority B

oard 

October 20, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg 39



Fiscal Impact: 
 
$0.  Sales Tax Equalization funds do not require a match. 
 
Staff Recommendation: 
 
Approve. 
 
Motions for Consideration: 
 
Move that the Mason Transit Authority Board approve Resolution No. 2020-34 that 
approves the First Amendment to Agreement PTD0081 between WSDOT and MTA and 
authorizes the General Manager to sign that First Amendment. 
 

October 20, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg 40



 Page 1 of 5 PTD0081-01 

The FIRST AMENDMENT to AGREEMENT PTD0081 entered into between the Washington 
State Department of Transportation (hereinafter referred to as “WSDOT”), and Mason Transit 
Authority (hereinafter referred to as “CONTRACTOR”), and/or individually referred to as the 
“PARTY” and collectively referred to as the “PARTIES,”  
 

RECITALS 
 
WHEREAS, both PARTIES agree to amend AGREEMENT PTD0081 to: 

- Add $153,950 in Rural Mobility Transit Formula Funding; and 
- Update the Project Title and Scope of Work for Project C; and 
- Add Project E: Scissor Lift; and 
- Add Project F: Roof Replacement. 

 
NOW THEREFORE, the following AMENDMENTS are hereby incorporated into AGREEMENT 
PTD0081: 
 

AGREEMENT 
 
1. RECITALS are hereby incorporated into this AGREEMENT. 
 
2.  Amend the existing language in ‘SCOPE OF WORK AND BUDGET – Current Agreement 
Costs’ and replace it to read as follows: 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Current Agreement Costs

Federal Funds

SCOPE OF WORK AND BUDGET

Total Current Agreement 

Cost

1,427,052$                           

1,777,502$                           

475,684$                              

2,253,186$                           

350,450$                              State Funds
Total Grant Funds

Contractor's Funds

October 20, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg 41



 Page 2 of 5 PTD0081-01 

 
 
3.  Amend the existing language in ‘SCOPE OF WORK AND BUDGET – Funding by Project’ 
and replace it to read as follows (no changes to Projects A, B, and D): 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Funding by Project

Project A:

UPIN # PTCV032
Service Area:

Scope of Work:

Funds Federal 

Award

Identification 

#

Current 

Percentage

Current Funds Projected 

Funds

Total Current 

and Projected 

Funds

FTA 5339 WA-19-081 75%  $           699,118  $           699,118 
Contractor's Funds N/A 25%  $           233,039  $           233,039 

Total Project Cost 100% 932,157$           -$                    932,157$           

Budget:

Nine Replacement Cutaways

Purchase nine (9) replacement ADA accessible light-duty cutaway vans to 
provide public transportation services for special needs citizens in Mason 
County.

Current Funds reflect total funding appropriated by the Washington State Legislature for 
the Project in the 2019-2021 b iennium.

Mason, Kitsap, Thurston, and Jefferson Counties

Project B:

UPIN # PTCV033
Service Area:

Scope of Work:

Funds Federal 

Award

Identification 

#

Current 

Percentage

Current Funds Projected 

Funds

Total Current 

and Projected 

Funds

FTA 5339 WA-19-081 75%  $           727,934  $           727,934 
Contractor's Funds N/A 25%  $           242,645  $           242,645 

Total Project Cost 100% 970,579$           -$                    970,579$           

Budget:

Purchase two (2) replacement ADA accessible heavy-duty buses to 
provide public transportation services for the public in Mason County.

Two Replacement Heavy-Duty Buses

Mason, Kitsap, Thurston, and Jefferson Counties

Current Funds reflect total funding appropriated by the Washington State Legislature for 
the Project in the 2019-2021 b iennium.

October 20, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg 42



 Page 3 of 5 PTD0081-01 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Project C:

UPIN # PTCV034
Service Area:

Scope of Work:

Funds Federal 

Award

Identification 

#

Current 

Percentage

Current Funds Projected 

Funds

Total Current 

and Projected 

Funds

Rural Mobility Transit 
Formula Funds N/A 100%  $           176,650  $           176,650 
Contractor's Funds N/A 0%  $                      -    $                      -   

Total Project Cost 100% 176,650$           -$                    176,650$           

Budget:

Two Small Dial-a-Ride Cutaway Vehicles

Purchase two (2) small cutaway vehicle for use in providing Dial-A-Ride 
service in Mason Transit's service area.

Mason, Kitsap, Thurston, and Jefferson Counties

Current Funds reflect total funding appropriated by the Washington State Legislature for 
the Project in the 2019-2021 b iennium.

Project D:

UPIN # PTCE007
Service Area:

Scope of Work:

Funds Federal 

Award

Identification 

#

Current 

Percentage

Current Funds Projected 

Funds

Total Current 

and Projected 

Funds

Rural Mobility Transit 
Formula Funds N/A 100%  $           116,500  $           116,500 
Contractor's Funds N/A 0%  $                      -    $                      -   

Total Project Cost 100% 116,500$           -$                    116,500$           

Budget:

Repair three (3) coaches including engine rebuilds and transmissions to 
prolong the life of the vehicles.

Current Funds reflect total funding appropriated by the Washington State Legislature for 
the Project in the 2019-2021 b iennium.

Mason, Kitsap, Thurston, and Jefferson Counties

Coach Repairs

October 20, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg 43



 Page 4 of 5 PTD0081-01 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Project E:

UPIN # PTCE008
Service Area:

Scope of Work:

Funds Federal 

Award

Identification 

#

Current 

Percentage

Current Funds Projected 

Funds

Total Current 

and Projected 

Funds

Rural Mobility Transit 
Formula Funds N/A 100%  $             17,300  $             17,300 
Contractor's Funds N/A 0%  $                      -    $                      -   

Total Project Cost 100% 17,300$             -$                    17,300$             

Budget:

Scissor Lift

Mason County
Purchase one (1) scissor lift for the purpose of cleaning, repairing, or 
maintaining facilities.

Current Funds reflect total funding appropriated by the Washington State Legislature for 
the Project in the 2019-2021 b iennium.

Project F:

UPIN # PTCE009
Service Area:

Scope of Work:

Funds Federal 

Award

Identification 

#

Current 

Percentage

Current Funds Projected 

Funds

Total Current 

and Projected 

Funds

Rural Mobility Transit 
Formula Funds N/A 100%  $             40,000  $             40,000 
Contractor's Funds N/A 0%  $                      -    $                      -   

Total Project Cost 100% 40,000$             -$                    40,000$             

Budget:

Mason County
Replace roof on Randich Building, a small building owned by Mason 
Transit Authority.

Current Funds reflect total funding appropriated by the Washington State Legislature for 
the Project in the 2019-2021 b iennium.

Roof Replacement

October 20, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg 44



 Page 5 of 5 PTD0081-01 

4.  A copy of this AMENDMENT to the AGREEMENT shall be attached to and made a part of 
the original AGREEMENT.  Any references to the “AGREEMENT” shall mean “AGREEMENT as 
amended.” 

 
5.  All other terms and conditions of the original AGREEMENT not hereby amended shall 
remain in full force and effect.  This document may be simultaneously executed in several 
counterparts, each of which shall be deemed original having identical legal effect. 
 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the PARTIES hereto have executed this AMENDMENT the day and 
year last written below. 
 
 
WASHINGTON STATE    CONTRACTOR 
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
 
 
 
 
Signed By:            Signed By:                
                            Name         Date           Name  Date 
 WSDOT Public Transportation Division          Authorized Representative  
 
                   Title: ______________________________ 
 
 
                   Print Name: _________________________                                                      
 
 
 
 

October 20, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg 45



Resolution No. 2020-34 Page 1 of 2 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2020-34 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE MASON TRANSIT AUTHORITY BOARD AMENDING 
RESOLUTION NO. 2019-31 BY APPROVING THE FIRST AMENDMENT TO 

AGREEMENT PTD0081 WITH THE WASHINGTON STATE DEPARTMENT OF 
TRANSPORTATION FOR THE CAPITAL GRANT AGREEMENT AND 

AUTHORIZING THE GENERAL MANAGER TO SIGN THE FIRST AMENDMENT 
TO AGREEMENT PTD0081. 

 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Resolution No. 2019-31, Mason Transit Authority 
(MTA) approved Capital Grant Agreement PTD0081; and 

WHEREAS, WSDOT has prepared a first amendment to the agreement to 
provide for allocation to each of the following projects, the additional amounts 
received by the FY 2021 Sales Tax Equalization funds as follows: 

• Add $96,650 in State Sales Tax Equalization Transit Rural Formula Funds into 
Current Funds for Project C; 

• Add $17,300 in State Sales Tax Equalization Transit Rural Formula Funds into 
Current Funds for new Project E; and 

• Add $40,000 in State Sales Tax Equalization Transit Rural Formula Funds into 
Current Funds for new Project F. 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MASON TRANSIT 
AUTHORITY BOARD that it approves the First Amendment to Agreement PTD0081 
with the Washington State Department of Transportation (the “Agreement”) for a total 
of $2,253,186, an increase of $153,950, in which no local match is required for the 
increase; and 

/// 

/// 

(rest of page intentionally left blank) 

October 20, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg 46



Resolution No. 2020-34 Page 2 of 2 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the MTA Board authorizes the General 
Manager is authorized to sign the Agreement between the State of Washington 
Department of Transportation and Mason Transit Authority. 

 
Adopted this 20th day of October, 2020. 

 
 
 
______________________________  ______________________________ 
Wes Martin, Chair     Sharon Trask, Vice-Chair 
 
 
______________________________  ______________________________ 
John Campbell, Authority Member   Kevin Dorcy, Authority Member 
 
 
_______________________________  ______________________________ 
Matt Jewett, Authority Member    Randy Neatherlin, Authority Member  
 
 
______________________________  ____________________________ 
[Vacant], Authority Member   Kevin Shutty, Authority Member 
 
 
______________________________  
Sandy Tarzwell, Authority Member 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO CONTENT:    _______    ______ 
          Danette Brannin, General Manager 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:        ______ 
    Robert W. Johnson, Legal Counsel 
 
 
ATTEST:        DATE:    ______ 
           Tracy Becht, Clerk of the Board 

October 20, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg 47



Mason Transit Authority Regular Board Meeting 
Agenda Item:   New Business – Item 7 – Actionable 
Subject:    Grant Application 
Prepared by:  Danette Brannin, General Manager 
Approved by:  Danette Brannin, General Manager 
Date:    October 20, 2020 
 
Background: 
 
Staff is requesting approval to submit a grant application through the WSDOT 
Consolidated Grant Program for 2021-2023. 
 
The application is for one 35’ coach and six cutaways to replace vehicles that are 
beyond their useful life. We have funds encumbered to cover a match of 25%. 
 
 
 
Summary: Approve General Manager to submit grant application for vehicles. 
 
 
Fiscal Impact: 
 
25% match on $1,033,052 = $317,381 
 
 
Staff Recommendation: 
 
Approve 
 
Motion for Consideration: 
 
Move that the Mason Transit Authority Board approve the General Manager to submit a 
grant application for vehicles to the Washington State Department of Transportation 
Public Transportation Division. 

M
ason T

ransit A
uthority B

oard 

October 20, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg 48



Mason Transit Authority Regular Board Meeting 
Agenda Item:   New Business – Item 8 – Informational 
Subject:    Admin Move to T-CC 
Prepared by:  Danette Brannin, General Manager 
Approved by:  Danette Brannin, General Manager 
Date:    October 20, 2020 
 
Summary for Informational Purposes: 
 
The Board Operations and Maintenance Committee of Matt Jewett and Kevin Dorcy met 
on October 14, 2020 for the purpose of discussing the Admin Office Staff moving to the 
T-CC.  
 
In renewing the contract for Family Education and Support Services (FESS), a current 
tenant at the T-CC, it was apparent FESS would struggle with the increase in rent 
required after doing a fair market analysis. This gave opportunity for discussion on 
having FESS move to Johns Prairie Admin area that would provide lower rent as well as 
needed space FESS desired to accommodate clients in a more private setting. 
 
It gave opportunity for MTA to look at streamlining more of the operations and 
administration. This task was part of the discussion with the HR and Finance 
Committees on looking for ways to cut costs in preparation for potential revenue 
shortfall. The Comm Center staff has mostly transitioned to the T-CC as well as the 
Operations Supervisors. It makes sense to do the same with Admin. This gives 
opportunity for most of the workforce to have easy access to the Admin staff. 
Additionally, there is cost savings by only staffing one facility, a much-needed option 
considering upcoming potential challenges if grant funding is reduced due to I-976. 
Staff feels this move will accomplish several benefits.  
 
Sometime ago, the committee began the process of looking at whether it was time to 
build a new administration/operations building or remodel. It makes more sense to use 
what we have versus spending money on a remodel or new building.  
 
The loss of revenue equals $7,304 annually. This is the difference between what FESS 
would have paid at the T-CC versus what they will pay at Johns Prairie. This difference 
will be made up in savings on staff and operational costs. 
 
The committee recommends moving forward with the Admin move to the T-CC and 
leasing the JP space to FESS. 

M
ason T

ransit A
uthority B

oard 

October 20, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg 49



Mason Transit Authority Regular Board Meeting 
Agenda Item:   Informational Report Item 1 - Informational 
Subject:    Mason Transit Authority Regional Mobility Park and Ride 

Progress Update 
Prepared by:  Patrick Holm, SCJ Alliance 
Approved by:  Danette Brannin, General Manager 
Date:    October 20, 2020 
 
Summary for Discussion Purposes:   
 
Project Management:  SCJ is continually managing the design team and subconsultant 
team. SCJ is tracking on-going project progress.  
 
Permitting: Permits have been completed for the MTA Park and Ride Development 
Program. 
 
Pear Orchard Construction: Scarsella has re-mobilized and is progressing construction. 
Scarsella has decommissioned the abandoned manhole which caused the delay. The 
water line work has been completed along with the majority of the stormwater 
improvements. The landscape and electrical contractors are planning to work next week 
and the curb and gutter will come after that. 
 
Program Construction: Rognlin’s is preparing submittals for the overall project and 
evaluating how to order materials and stay in line with the available funding. Rognlin’s 
has moved some of the stockpile of soil at the Belfair site and plans to prepare some 
preliminary foundation work in the next couple of weeks.  
 
Other progress: Scarsella/Parsons is currently progressing construction of their portion 
of the Shelton-Matlock Road park and ride. The site has been graded and the 
stormwater improvements have been installed. Scarsella is in the process of 
constructing the illumination foundations and corresponding conduit and junction boxes. 
 
 

M
ason T

ransit A
uthority B

oard 

October 20, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg 50



Mason Transit Authority Regular Board Meeting 
Agenda Item:   Informational Report Item 2 – Informational 
Subject:    Management Reports 
Prepared by:  Tracy Becht, Executive Assistant 
Approved by:  Danette Brannin, General Manager 
Date:    October 20, 2020 
 
Summary for Informational Purposes: 
 
The monthly MTA Management Reports are attached for your information. 
 

M
ason T

ransit A
uthority B

oard 

October 20, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg 51



  

  

 

MTA MANAGEMENT REPORTS 
 

Submitted to MTA Authority Board October 20, 2020 
 

October 20, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg 52



 
 1 

M
TA

 M
AN

AG
EM

EN
T 

RE
PO

RT
S 

|1
0/

20
/2

02
0 

 
 

MTA MANAGEMENT REPORTS 
Submitted to MTA Authority Board October 20, 2020 

GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT 
Below is a l ist of major activit ies for the month: 
Park & Ride Development: 

• Pear Orchard and Shelton-Matlock are under construction. 
• Phone meeting (2x) with Project Manager. 
• Still working on schedule with Rognlins for Belfair, Pickering and Cole Rd. 
• Had groundbreaking/ribbon cutting at the Belfair Park & Ride on October 5. 
• Please see Park & Ride informational page for more details. 

T-CC Parking Lot: 
• We are still waiting for the No Further Action opinion but did hear it is in review now. 

EDC:  Attended monthly Oct EDC Board meeting (virtually).  
WSTIP:  

• Attended the Monthly Executive Committee meeting and Quarterly Board Meeting (virtually). 
• Planning details of January Board Retreat. 
• Participated in committee to review the Executive Director’s contract and job description. 

WSTA/SMTA:  
• Participated in bi-weekly SMTA call with other GMs. 
• Participated in assisting the Executive Director on writing a new Leave Policy. 

Webinars: Attended the following webinars: 
• Transit Tuesday: Race, Work, and Leadership: New Perspective on the Black Experience. 
• Transit Tuesday: The Importance of Transit in Communities of Color. 

PRTPO: Participated in PRTPO Technical Advisory Committee meeting. 
External Activities: 

• Participated with City on virtual site visit meeting for crosswalk improvements in Shelton.  
• Met with Shelton Yacht Club stakeholders to discuss our Pear Orchard project and how we could assist 

them with meeting the desire to install a sewer line. 
Internal Activities: 

• Working on Consolidated Grant Applications. 
• Employee Engagement Committee meeting. (2x) 
• Released an informal solicitation for Public Relations assistance. Reviewed four proposals received.  
• Met with staff regarding Ecolane progress. 
• Met with Berg Marketing to review what projects are left to do in their agreement. 
• Worked with Tracy to prepare Letters of Support for our grant applications. 
• Various budget meetings and conversations with LeeAnn. 
• Celebrated Kathy’s retirement. 
• Met with Matt Jewett and Kevin Dorcy to discuss Admin move to T-CC. 
• Met with staff on signage needed at T-CC. 
• Met with Mike and Chris Wilder to discuss COVID-19 plan moving forward. 

Board Assistance, Awareness and Support: 
• PR. We have budgeted for a PR firm to assist with several projects in 2021 including marketing 

services, thinking on new ways to reach the community and help redesign our website to be more user 
friendly.  

• I-976 has been overturned by the WA State Supreme Court. While this is good news for transit, ferry 
systems, cities with Transportation districts, etc. I understand taxpayers voted in favor of $30 car tabs. 
There are many issues surrounding I-976 from violation of the single subject matter to removing the 
motor vehicle excise tax for Sound Transit that was bonded. I assume either an appeal will happen (if 
that is possible) or another initiative will come forth that is written within the limits. 

October 20, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg 53



 

2 

M
TA

 M
AN

AG
EM

EN
T 

RE
PO

RT
S 

| 
10

/2
0/

20
20

  

TEAM UPDATES 
 
ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES MANAGER – LeeAnn McNulty 
 
HR Support   

• Attended WSTIP sponsored Mental Health C.A.R.E. webinar. 
• Participated in Employee Engagement Committee meetings. 
• Participated in interviews for Covid Coordinator position. 
• Met with Danette to review EEO program updates. 
• At the close of September, we sadly said goodbye to 4 drivers as a result of continuing reduced service 

levels. 
Recruiting 

• No open positions 
Administrative Functions 

• SAO virtual audit continues.   
• Attended WSTIP virtual quarterly board meetings. 
• Participated in scoring of public relations proposals. 
• Worked with Tracy along with help from legal counsel to formalize tenant lease templates. 
• Working with long term tenants at both TCC & JP to determine intentions for renewing leases in 2021 

given the business changes in this Covid environment. 
• Obtained data from commercial real estate partners and WSDOT for setting tenant lease market rates. 
• Collaborated with WSDOT on requirements of FTA concurrence for tenant leases at the TCC. 
• Met individually with department heads in preparation of the first draft of 2021 Budget. 

 
MAINTENANCE/FACILITIES – Marshall Krier 
 
Outreach and meetings: 

• Participated in the Centralia College Diesel Advisory Board zoom meeting. 
T-CC Facility: 

• Gym: Continuing to work with Jordanne K. at the City of Shelton on pickle ball program.  
• Conference Room: No activity due to COVID-19 virus. 
• Kitchen: No activity. 

T-CC Building Projects/Purchases/Maintenance 
Projects/Purchases 

• Steve is coordinating with Tracy, LeeAnn, and Christina on T-CC Leases, Use Agreements, and 
accounting requirements. 

• On-going deep cleaning for COVID-19. 
• Prepping for the JP Admin move to T-CC  
 

Johns Prairie and Belfair Building Projects/Purchases/Maintenance: 
• Completed pricing from Gillig for two, 35-foot coaches utilizing the 5339 grant. 
• Completed pricing for Schetky NW for 6 cutaways for the consolidated grant application. 
• The nine surplused cutaways are at Ehli’s have been sold, awaiting sales results.  
• Completed the portable office move and set up at the Roy Boad Park & Ride facility. 
• On-going deep cleaning for COVID-19. 

 
OPERATIONS – Mike Ringgenberg 

• Belfair Office:  We moved out of the old MTA Belfair Office and are now 100% operational from the Roy 
Boad Park & Ride. Thanks to everyone who helped make this move happen! 

• COVID-19 Coordinator/Driver:  We interviewed and moved Chris Wilder into a new temporary position 
as a COVID-19 Coordinator/Driver to help us inventory/track/distribute our PPE to staff and riders and 
to monitor COVID-19 requirements. 

• Ecolane: As ridership slowly increases, the software is streamlining rides better. 
• Meals on Wheels: We delivered 560 meals to Mason County residents in September. 

October 20, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg 54



 
 3 

M
TA

 M
AN

AG
EM

EN
T 

RE
PO

RT
S 

|1
0/

20
/2

02
0 

 
• Office moves:  To help streamline our processes and improve our efficiencies, we have moved the 

closing scheduler/dispatcher to the customer service office at the T-CC.  We also moved the Safety & 
Training Supervisor and the JP Operations Supervisor workstation into the CommCenter for better 
coverage and communication with the remaining Operations staff.  We put the new COVID-19 
Coordinator/Driver into the CommCenter.   

• Operations Meetings: We scheduled the 2021 mandatory Operations meetings for:  January 10, May 9 
and September 12. During these meetings we will conduct shift bids for the scheduled driver shake 
ups for:  February 1, June 7 and October 4. COVID-19 pandemic events may change shake up dates 
and possible cancel the Operation meetings if gatherings are still not allowed.   

• Outreach presentations:  All outreach presentations have stopped during the COVID-19 outbreak. 
• Retirements:  John Fenton retired at the end of September and Kathy Geist retired on October 9, 

2020.  Congratulations to Kathy & John! 
• Ridership:  We had 15,311 total riders in all modes of transportation in September 2020. This is up 

1,027 riders from August 2020. 
• Training:  Supervisors conducted Ecolane tablet training for six drivers this month and Lisa has started 

a backup worker/driver CDL training class. 
• Unite GPS:  UniteGPS is being used for fixed routes buses. We are installing the hardware on the 

coaches to allow the tablet to make ADA announcements.  
• Vanpool: Usage rate for September 2020 was 50%; 5 of 10 vans were in use. 
• Volunteer Driver:  Our extra board drivers performed 20 volunteer driver rides.   
• Worker/Driver:  We would like to welcome Michael Scafe to the MTA Worker/Driver team. He has 

started his CDL training to become a backup worker/driver.     
  

October 20, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg 55



 

4 

M
TA

 M
AN

AG
EM

EN
T 

RE
PO

RT
S 

| 
10

/2
0/

20
20

  

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

2020 WORK ITEMS UPDATE 
 

 

 

 

 

SEE ATTACHED SPREADSHEETS 

October 20, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg 56



2020 Work Items
Completed as 

of 
10/16/2020

1st Quarter Driver training and refresher training as required √

2nd Quarter Driver training and refresher training as required √

3rd Quarter Driver training and refresher training as required √

4th Quarter Driver training and refresher training as required

Complete CAD/AVL/GPS installation √

Change from flag stop to fixed stop in urban area of Shelton

Curbs or bollards at Johns Prairie

Purchase rain jackets √

Manager or supervisor on-duty during service - Move Ops office √

Ensure L & I safety compliance through training

Review WSTIP Best Practices for Safety

Define Safety Committee's purpose and direction

Review DAR services and hours for efficiency and availability √

Expand Zipper route time to 8:00am-5:00pm √

Seek Pilot opportunities and funding

Continue review of Comp Service Review √

Conduct outreach for all service changes

Once regular service hours resume, we will continue to track DAR and complete a survey on the whether the 
changes we made in Feb are providing efficiency and availability. Until then, the project is considered 
completed as our Feb. 3, 2020 shake up changes showed an 8% increase in DAR ridership.

Zipper route time has been expanded.
Working on pilot route for Lakeland Village and ATS (Agate, Timberlake and Shorecrest). Will be adding new 
route once Shelton-Matlock Park & Ride is open.
We have completed looking at recommendations from the Comp. Service Review. However, we will continue 
to use this document as a reference.

We did outreach on our current service changes - public meetings, direct communication with riders and a 
radio spot. Outreach has/is being conducted during the COVID-19 crisis through press releases and rider 
alerts; keeping website up-to-date with current information and route changes.

Objective 2: Effective Transportation Services

Rainjackets have been ordered; grant request submitted to WSTIP

Operations office at T-CC is complete. Operations Supervisors are now available while service is operating.

Progress

First Quarter Training included: 10 CPR/AED/FA Trainings; all drivers did 8 hours of refresher training on ADA 
callouts, Mindful Driving, G.O.A.L., Safety Incentives and PASS(wheelchair) Training.  One Vol. Driver trained 
and one new Worker/Driver; 57 of Operations staff participated in a 90 minute presentaton by the National 
Alliance of Mental Illness; retrained one driver on a coach; and training on the new Hybrid bus with 
Worker/Drivers. 

For the most part UniteGPS and Ecolane are now working. Still tweaking minor things put overall the project 
has been completed.

Objective 1: Safe and Secure

Bus on the Lookout; CPR/AED/FA; one volunteer driver trained; two back-up worker/drivers were route 
trained; Ecolane; Reasonable Suspicion; PASS; COVID-19 PPE; one driver refresher; new vehicle training.

All caught up in CPR/AED/FA and PASS training; 7 drivers trained in 40' coaches; 1 driver trained in new 
cutaway; tablet training for all drivers; 1 vanpool driver trained; 2 drivers currently being trained as back up 
worker/drivers.

N:\Admin\Admin Shared\MTA Authority Board ARCHIVAL\2020 Authority Board\Workplan Update 2020 October 20, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg 57



Improve passenger amenities 

Plan for 2021 service adjustments due to impact of funding √

Benchmark route performance and monitor low-performing routes

Procurement training for Public Works projects √

Prepare for I-976 impacts √

Create needed financial policies or manual

Ensure compliance of grant contracts √

Review 5-year sustainability plan √

Prepare for Paid Family Medical Leave rollout √
Maintain Fair Labor Standard Act compliance through updated 
training

Records Management - Network reorganization

Conduct Community Conversations to solicit input

Participate in community events

Promote City and County partnerships

Participate in outside committees, RTPO and boards

Participate in mentorship programs

Promote Volunteer Driver Program

Park & Ride project (through 2023)

Brand vehicles √

Progression toward inclusion of electric vehicles

Improve communications through established methods

Objective 4: Community Partnerships and Responsibility

Staff talked to Patty Wagon to discuss forming a partnership so if we are short drivers we can get some 
assistance from them. Since several of our Volunteer Drivers are older, they are not driving as much so MTA 
drivers are filling the gap and taking clients to essential appointments in an MTA vehicle.

Standard design for branding buses is complete;  some of the new cutaways will have taglines on them 
promoting MTA.

Objective 3: Financial Stewardship

Staff attended training. Policy has been updated. Processes and forms have been created. Finance staff 
trained department heads.

We have prepared as best we can. MTA's financial outlook is healthy through 2021 at least.

Service levels will be returning to 75% of what we had pre-COVID. We will be using this base line 
as the premise for future service levels should the impact of I-976 becomes a reality. In the TDP, 
we show a reduction in service in 2021-2022.

LeeAnn has reviewed grant agreements and has thoroughly gone through the reimbursement process to 
ensure charges are proper.

The 5-year sustainability plan has been updated. Staff will be seeking input from the Board.

Policy has been created. Employees have been presented with information at the All-MTA Meeting.

The file structure has been planned and the IT Team is in the process of creating a new drive. New drive has 
been created. Next step is to begin using new drive and naming structure.

Completed the information center at the T-CC; working on new scheduling software that has an app for 
scheduling a ride and knowing where the bus is.

Objective 5: Workplace Culture

The Employee Engagement Committee is working through a communication plan.

This is currently on hold due to COVID-19.

Delivering meals to seniors during the COVID-19 crisis.

Worked with City on T-CC Parking Lot project that is now complete.

Danette: PRTPO, EDC, WSTIP, WSTA. Kathy: Moving Mason Forward, TIP CAP, Opiate Stakeholders. LeeAnn: 
WSTIP. Marshall: Centralia College Diesel Advisory Committee.

No activities this month.

See Park & Ride informational page for update.

Reviewing a grant opportunity for electric bus but decided to pass on the grant.

N:\Admin\Admin Shared\MTA Authority Board ARCHIVAL\2020 Authority Board\Workplan Update 2020 October 20, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg 58



Incorporate wellness program and encourage participation

Promote skills and job knowledge

Bargain contracts for drivers and Comm Center

Employee Engagement committee 

Enhance meaningful employee recognition √

Provide more Belfair interaction and oversight

Prepare a policy review schedule √ Created a schedule for reviewing policies.

Kick off of Wellness Program was done at the All-MTA Meeting with the first wellness challenge. The 
committee has several activities planned.

GM working with Ops and Finance on expanding knowledge of staff.

Drivers' contract has been ratified. Have not started the Comm Center contract yet.

Committee continues to meet. A survey was prepared for the All-MTA meeting and we had 78% participation. 
The next project to work on is a communication flow chart. Resumed meeting and plan to meet bi-weekly or 
as committee is available.

We have revised the employee recognition policy; have incorporated a safety bonus for drivers; are being 
mindful of showing appreciation. 

N:\Admin\Admin Shared\MTA Authority Board ARCHIVAL\2020 Authority Board\Workplan Update 2020 October 20, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg 59



Mason Transit Authority Regular Board Meeting 
Agenda Item:   Informational Item 3 –Informational 
Subject:    Operational Statistics 
Prepared by:  LeeAnn McNulty, Administrative Services Manager 
Approved by:  Danette Brannin, General Manager 
Date:    October 20, 2020 
 
 
Background: 
 
The attached ridership data depicts the continued impact of the pandemic on passenger 
utilization of MTA services as it continues to show decreased ridership in 2020 over 
previous year. However, ridership has stabilized it appears and there was a slight 
increase in September over August.  
 
 
 
 
 M

ason T
ransit A

uthority B
oard 

October 20, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg 60



RIDERSHIP DATA CHARTED

800
1200
1600
2000
2400
2800
3200
3600
4000
4400

Demand Response
2020

2019

2018

2017

2016

350
1850
3350
4850
6350
7850
9350

10850
12350
13850
15350
16850
18350
19850
21350
22850

Out of County Ridership
2020

2019

2018

2017

2016

4600
6100
7600
9100
10600
12100
13600
15100
16600
18100
19600

In County Ridership 2020

2019

2018

2017

2016

7500
10500
13500
16500
19500
22500
25500
28500
31500
34500
37500
40500
43500

Total Ridership 2020

2019

2018

2017

2016

1
301
601
901
1201
1501
1801
2101
2401
2701
3001
3301
3601

Express Ridership
2020

2019

2018

2017

2016

October 20, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg 61


	ADPEF69.tmp
	Mason Transit Authority
	Minutes of the Regular Board Meeting
	September 15, 2020
	Transit-Community Center
	601 West Franklin Street
	Shelton
	NEW BUSINESS
	UPCOMING MEETING

	ADP23B7.tmp
	GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT
	Below is a list of major activities for the month:
	Board Assistance, Awareness and Support:

	TEAM UPDATES
	2020 WORK ITEMS UPDATE

	Workplan Update 2020.pdf
	2020




